
 

Meeting Notice 

 

 

Paratransit Advisory and 

Planning Committee  
Monday, November 24, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Oakland, CA 94607 

 

Please note that the Monday, November 24, 2014 PAPCO 

meeting will be from 1:00 to 3:30 p.m. Please plan your 

transportation accordingly. 

 
Mission Statement 

The mission of the Alameda County Transportation Commission 

(Alameda CTC) is to plan, fund and deliver transportation programs and 

projects that expand access and improve mobility to foster a vibrant 

and livable Alameda County. 

 

Public Comments 

Public comments are limited to 3 minutes. Items not on the agenda are 

covered during the Public Comment section of the meeting, and items 

specific to an agenda item are covered during that agenda item 

discussion. If you wish to make a comment, fill out a speaker card, hand 

it to the clerk of the Commission, and wait until the chair calls your 

name. When you are summoned, come to the microphone and give 

your name and comment. 

 

Reminder 

Please turn off your cell phones during the meeting. Please do not wear 

scented products so individuals with environmental sensitivities may attend 

the meeting. 

Commission Chair 

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 

 

Commission Vice Chair 

Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan, 

City of Oakland 

 

AC Transit 

Director Elsa Ortiz 

 

Alameda County 

Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 

Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 

Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 

Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 

 

BART 

Director Thomas Blalock 

 

City of Alameda 

Mayor Marie Gilmore 

 

City of Albany 

Vice Mayor Peter Maass 

 

City of Berkeley 

Councilmember Laurie Capitelli 

 

City of Dublin 

Mayor Tim Sbranti 

 

City of Emeryville 

Vice Mayor Ruth Atkin 

 

City of Fremont 

Mayor Bill Harrison 

 

City of Hayward 

Mayor Barbara Halliday 

 

City of Livermore 

Mayor John Marchand 

 

City of Newark 

Councilmember Luis Freitas 

 

City of Oakland 

Vice Mayor Larry Reid 

 

City of Piedmont 

Mayor Margaret Fujioka 

 

City of Pleasanton 

Mayor Jerry Thorne  

 

City of San Leandro 

Councilmember Michael Gregory 

 

City of Union City 

Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 

 

 

Executive Director 

Arthur L. Dao 
 



 

Recording of Public Meetings 

The executive director or designee may designate one or more locations from which members of the 

public may broadcast, photograph, video record, or tape record open and public meetings without 

causing a distraction. If the Commission or any committee reasonably finds that noise, illumination, or 

obstruction of view related to these activities would persistently disrupt the proceedings, these 

activities must be discontinued or restricted as determined by the Commission or such committee (CA 

Government Code Sections 54953.5-54953.6). 

 

Location Map 

Alameda CTC 

1111 Broadway, Suite 800 

Oakland, CA  94607 

Alameda CTC is accessible by multiple 

transportation modes. The office is 

conveniently located near the  

12th Street/City Center BART station 

and many AC Transit bus lines. Bicycle 

parking is available on the street and in 

the BART station as well as in electronic 

lockers at 14th Street and Broadway 

near Frank Ogawa Plaza (requires 

purchase of key card from bikelink.org). 

Garage parking is located beneath City Center, accessible via entrances on 14th Street between 1300 

Clay Street and 505 14th Street buildings, or via 11th Street just past Clay Street. To plan your trip to 

Alameda CTC visit www.511.org. 

 

Accessibility 

Public meetings at Alameda CTC are wheelchair accessible under the Americans with Disabilities 

Act. Guide and assistance dogs are welcome.  

Call 510-893-3347 (Voice) or 510-834-6754 (TTD) five days in advance to request a sign-language 

interpreter. 

 

     

 

Meeting Schedule 

The Alameda CTC meeting calendar lists all public meetings and is available at 

www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/upcoming/now. 

 

http://www.511.org/
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/upcoming/now


 

Paperless Policy 

On March 28, 2013, the Alameda CTC Commission approved the implementation of paperless 

meeting packet distribution. Hard copies are available by request only. Agendas and all 

accompanying staff reports are available electronically on the Alameda CTC website at 

www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now. Any other notice required or permitted to be given 

under these bylaws will follow the same policy. PAPCO members receive an exception to the 

paperless policy and will continue to receive notices via U.S. Postal Service in addition to electronic 

versions. Members can request to opt-out of paper notices. 

 

Glossary of Terms 

A glossary of terms that includes frequently used industry terms and 

acronyms is available on the Alameda CTC website at www.AlamedaCTC.org/app_pages/view/8081. 

 

Connect with Alameda CTC 

www.AlamedaCTC.org facebook.com/AlamedaCTC 

 @AlamedaCTC 

 youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC 

 

file://ACTCFS01/SHARED/AlaCTC_Meetings/Community_TACs/PAPCO/Templates/Meeting_Notice/www.AlamedaCTC.org/events/month/now
http://www.alamedactc.org/app_pages/view/8081
http://www.alamedactc.org/
http://www.facebook.com/AlamedaCTC
https://twitter.com/AlamedaCTC
http://www.youtube.com/user/AlamedaCTC


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20141124.docx (A = Action Item; I = Information 

Item) 

 

Paratransit Advisory Planning Committee 
Meeting Agenda 

Monday, November 24, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 

  Chair: Sylvia Stadmire 

Vice Chair: Will Scott 

Staff Liaisons: Naomi Armenta, 

Jacki Taylor 

Public Meeting Coordinator: 

Krystle Pasco 

  

1:00 – 1:12 p.m. 

Chair 
1. Welcome and 

Introductions 

1:12 – 1:15 p.m. 

Public 
2. Public Comment Page A/I 

1:15 – 1:20 p.m. 

Chair 
3. Administration 

  

 3.1. October 27, 2014 PAPCO Meeting 

Minutes  

1 A 

 3.2. October 27, 2014 Joint PAPCO and 

ParaTAC Meeting Minutes 

7 A 

 Recommendation: Approve the  

October 27, 2014 PAPCO and Joint 

PAPCO and ParaTAC meeting 

minutes. 

  

1:20 – 1:40 p.m. 

Staff 

4. Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) 

Election Outcome Discussion 

 I 

 The Committee will receive an update 

on the TEP election outcome, including 

its relation to Gap Grant Cycle 6 and 

the Implementation Guidelines. 

  

1:40 – 2:10 p.m. 

Staff 

5. FY 2015/16 Proposed Funding Formula  11 A 



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20141124.docx (A = Action Item; I = Information 

Item) 

 

 The Committee is requested to 

recommend the Commission approve 

the proposed funding formula for FY 

2015/16. 

  

2:10 – 2:35 p.m. 

Guest Speakers 

6. East Bay Paratransit Report  I 

 The Committee will receive a report from 

East Bay Paratransit. 

  

2:35 – 2:45 p.m. 

PAPCO 
7. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, 

Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

  

 7.1. PAPCO Calendar of Events 19 I 

 7.2. PAPCO Work Plan 21 I 

 7.3. PAPCO Appointments 25 I 

2:45 – 2:55 p.m. 

 
8. Committee Reports (Verbal)   

Sharon Powers 8.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review 

Advisory Committee (SRAC) 
 I 

Herb Hastings 8.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee 

(CWC) 
 I 

 9. ADA Mandated Program and Policy 

Reports 

  

 9.1. September 2, 2014 East Bay 

Paratransit Service Review Advisory 

Committee Meeting Minutes 

27 I 

2:55 – 3:30 p.m. 10. Information Items   

Staff 10.1. Mobility Management – Assistive 

Technology Resources 

33 I 

Krystle Pasco 10.2. Outreach Update  I 

Staff 10.3. 2014 Annual Mobility Workshop 49 I 



R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20141124.docx (A = Action Item; I = Information 

Item) 

 

Update 

Staff 10.4. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress 

Reports Update 

53 I 

Staff 10.5. Other Staff Updates  I 

 11. Draft Agenda Items for January 26, 

2015 PAPCO Meeting 

 I 

 11.1. Implementation Guidelines 

Discussion 

  

 11.2. 2014 Paratransit Outreach 

Summary Report 

  

 11.3. Gap Grant Extension Update   

 11.4. Livermore Amador Valley Transit 

Authority (LAVTA) Quarterly 

Report  

  

 11.5. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program 

Report: Tri-City Volunteer Driver 

Programs 

  

 11.6. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Program 

Report: Rides for Seniors 

  

3:30 p.m. 12. Adjournment   

 

Next PAPCO Meeting: January 26, 2015 

All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the 

Committee. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, October 27, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 3.1 

 
MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_P_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_A_ Larry Bunn 

_P_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_P_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_P Suzanne Ortt 

_P Thomas Perez 

_P Sharon Powers 

_P Vanessa Proee 

 

_A Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_P Harriette 

Saunders 

_P Margaret Walker 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas

 

Staff:  

_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Cathleen Sullivan, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Alameda CTC Projects/Programs Team 

 

Guests:  

Jennifer Cullen, Senior Support Program of the Tri-Valley; Pam Deaton, 

City of Pleasanton Paratransit Program; Xenia Morris, City of Hayward 

Paratransit Program; Kim Ridgeway, AC Transit 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Sylvia Stadmire, PAPCO Chair, called the meeting to order at 

1:10 p.m. and confirmed a quorum. The meeting began with 

introductions and a review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

Page 1



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

 

3. Administration 

 

3.1. September 22, 2014 PAPCO Meeting Minutes 

Herb Hastings moved to approve the September 22, 2014 PAPCO 

Meeting minutes as written. Sandra Johnson-Simon seconded the 

motion. The motion passed (15-0-0). Members Shawn Costello, 

Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra Johnson-Simon, Jonah 

Markowitz, Carolyn Orr, Suzanne Ortt, Thomas Perez, Sharon 

Powers, Vanessa Proee, Harriette Saunders, Will Scott, Sylvia 

Stadmire, Margaret Walker and Esther Waltz were present. 

 

4. Convene 5310 Review Subcommittee 

Naomi Armenta gave an overview of the 5310 Review Subcommittee. 

She noted the subcommittees’ background and purpose as well as 

the selection, process and the overall responsibilities of the 

subcommittee members. The PAPCO members that participate in this 

subcommittee will receive a per diem as stated in the Bylaws. The 5310 

Review Subcommittee meeting will take place on Thursday, 

November 13th at 1:00 p.m. This meeting will review applications for 

the Large Urbanized Area. Staff may be required to schedule a 

second meeting on December 5th at 1:00 p.m. to score traditional 

capital applications from the Small Urbanized Area. 

 

The following PAPCO members volunteered for the 5310 Review 

Subcommittee: 

 Shawn Costello 

 Herb Hastings 

 Joyce Jacobson 

 Sandra Johnson-Simon 

 Jonah Markowitz 

 Carolyn Orr 

 Tom Perez 

 Harriette Saunders 

 Will Scott 

 Sylvia Stadmire 

 Margaret Walker 

 Esther Waltz 

Page 2



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

 

Additionally, staff recommended that PAPCO members consider 

empowering staff with finalizing the 5310 application scores for any 

traditional capital applications from the Small Urbanized Area, due to 

the strict timeline for submitting scores to MTC. 

 

Jonah Markowitz moved to empower Alameda CTC staff members 

with finalizing the 5310 application scoring process. Tom Perez 

seconded the motion. The motion passed (8-7-0; Members Shawn 

Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra Johnson-Simon, 

Sharon Powers, Harriette Saunders and Margaret Walker voted no). 

Members Shawn Costello, Herb Hastings, Joyce Jacobson, Sandra 

Johnson-Simon, Jonah Markowitz, Carolyn Orr, Suzanne Ortt, Thomas 

Perez, Sharon Powers, Vanessa Proee, Harriette Saunders, Will Scott, 

Sylvia Stadmire, Margaret Walker and Esther Waltz were present. 

 

5. Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress Reports 

Naomi Armenta gave an update on the Gap Grant Cycle 5 progress 

reports. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO members: 

 Members requested more information from the Center for 

Independent Living, Inc. – Mobility Matters Project; Senior 

Helpline Services - Rides for Seniors; and City of Oakland - Taxi-Up 

& Go Project. Staff will follow up with the grant recipients and 

provide an update in an upcoming meeting packet. 

 

6. Member Reports on PAPCO Mission, Roles, and Responsibilities 

Implementation 

Jonah Markowitz stated that Easy Does It will be hosting a fundraiser 

on November 6th from 6:00 to 9:00 p.m. He also announced that the 

Albany/Berkeley Mental Health Commission will be meeting on 

October 30th from 7:00 to 9:00 p.m. 

 

Michelle Rousey stated that she is taking a class at Laney College and 

will be displaying her final class project. She will be sending more 

information via email. 

 

Page 3



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

Sylvia Stadmire attended MTC’s Transportation Awards ceremony and 

saw Naomi receive an award. She is now focusing on doing more 

outreach around Measure BB as elections are happening very soon. 

 

Tom Perez attended the Newark Senior Center Senior Health Fair. He 

noted that a lot of information was given out regarding Measure BB 

and the Senior Clipper Cards. 

 

Harriette Saunders noted that USOAC just hosted their annual Walk 

Club Luncheon at the Oakland Zoo and it was very well attended. 

 

Esther Waltz had a great time at the annual Mobility Workshop at the 

Ed Roberts Campus. 

 

7. Committee Reports (Verbal) 

 

7.1. East Bay Paratransit Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC) 

Sharon Powers noted that the next SRAC meeting will take place 

on Tuesday, November 4th. More information will be provided at 

the next PAPCO meeting.  

 

7.2. Citizens Watchdog Committee (CWC) 

Herb Hastings reported that the next CWC meeting will take place 

on Monday, October 27th. More information will be provided at 

the next PAPCO meeting. 

 

8. ADA Mandated Program and Policy Reports 

PAPCO members were asked to review these items in their packets.  

 

9. Information Items 

 

9.1. Mobility Management – Checklist for Assessing the Accessibility of 

Transportation and Mobility 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the mobility management attachment 

in the packet. 

 

9.2. Outreach Update 

Krystle Pasco gave an update on the following outreach events: 

Page 4



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

 10/4/14 – Senior Info Fair, Dublin Senior Center from 10:00 

a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 10/7/14 – Newark Senior Center Senior Health Fair, Silliman 

Activity Center from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 10/17/14 – Mobility Workshop, Ed Roberts Campus from 9:30 

a.m. to 3:30 p.m. 

 

9.3. Transportation Expenditure Plan Update 

Laurel Poeton gave an update on the Transportation Expenditure 

Plan (TEP). She noted that staff has continued to attend events 

and distribute postcards all throughout Alameda County. Lastly, if 

members would like the Alameda CTC to be at any of the 

meetings or events that their affiliated organizations are hosting, 

please contact staff with more information.  

 

9.4. 2014 Annual Mobility Workshop Update 

An update was provided in the Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC 

meeting. 

 

9.5. Other Staff Updates 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the additional handouts regarding the 

two upcoming events in the community. 

 

10. Draft Agenda Items for November 24, 2014 PAPCO Meeting 

10.1. Discuss Transportation Expenditure Plan Election Outcome 

10.2. Discuss Gap Grant Guidelines 

10.3. East Bay Paratransit Report 

 

11. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 2:30 p.m. The next PAPCO meeting is 

scheduled for November 24, 2014 at Alameda CTC’s offices located 

at 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in Oakland. 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 6



 

 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

Joint Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee 
and Paratransit Technical Advisory Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

Monday, October 27, 2014, 2:30 p.m. 3.2 

 
MEETING ATTENDEES 

Attendance Key (A = Absent, P = Present) 

Members: 

_P_ Sylvia Stadmire, 

Chair 

_P_ Will Scott,  

Vice-Chair 

_A_ Larry Bunn 

_A_ Shawn Costello 

_P_ Herb Hastings 

_P_ Joyce 

Jacobson 

_P Sandra  

Johnson-Simon 

_P Jonah Markowitz 

_P Rev. Carolyn Orr 

_P Suzanne Ortt 

_P Thomas Perez 

_P Sharon Powers 

_P Vanessa Proee 

 

_A Carmen Rivera-

Hendrickson 

_P Michelle Rousey 

_P Harriette 

Saunders 

_P Margaret Walker 

_P Esther Waltz 

_P Hale Zukas 

 

 

ParaTAC Members: 

_A_ Rhianna Babka 

_P_ Dana Bailey 

_A_ Beverly Bolden 

_A_ Melinda Chinn 

_P_ Pam Deaton 

_A_ Shawn Fong 

_A_ Brad 

Helfenberger 

_A_ Karen Hemphill 

_A_ Drew King 

_A_ Jackie Krause 

_P_ Kadri Külm 

_A_ Kevin Laven 

_A_ Isabelle Leduc 

_A_ Wilson Lee 

_P_ Hakeim McGee 

_A_ Cindy Montero 

_A_ Mallory Nestor 

_A_ Gail Payne 

_P_ Kim Ridgeway 

_A_ Mary Rowlands 

_A_ Michelle Silva 

_A_ Leah Talley 

_P_ Laura Timothy 

_P_ Jonathan Torres 

_A_ Jeff Weiss 

_A_ David Zehnder 

 

Staff:  

_P_ Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

_P_ Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

_P_ Krystle Pasco, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Cathleen Sullivan, Paratransit Coordination Team 

_P_ Christina Ramos, Alameda CTC Projects/Programs Team 

 

Guests:  

Jennifer Cullen, Senior Support Program of the Tri-Valley; Xenia Morris, 

City of Hayward Paratransit Program 

Page 7



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator, called the meeting to order 

at 2:30 p.m. and confirmed a quorum. The meeting began with 

introductions and a review of the meeting outcomes. 

 

2. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

 

3. Mobility Workshop Outcomes Report 

Cathleen Sullivan gave a report on the Mobility Workshop outcomes. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO and ParaTAC members: 

 Members really liked the Mobility Workshop and that 

representatives from other Counties were able to attend. 

 Members were really impressed with the resource fair and the 

Mobility Workshop in general. 

 A member would like to reconsider moving the Mobility 

Workshop back to July. 

 A member would like to see information and resources on 

wheelchair repair in future Mobility Workshops. 

 A member noted that a majority of the afternoon presentations 

were centered on having a smartphone handy. She noted that 

many senior and disabled consumers can’t afford a smartphone 

currently but this may change in the next five years. 

 

Staff noted that they would provide an update on the Workshop 

outcomes, including results from the survey, in an upcoming meeting 

packet. 

 

4. Livermore Amador Valley Transit Authority (LAVTA) Quarterly Report 

Kadri Külm gave a quarterly report on the Livermore Amador Valley 

Transit Authority (LAVTA). 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO and ParaTAC members: 

Page 8



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

 A member suggested providing more specific information 

regarding the survey results in the next quarterly report.  

 A member liked the graphs in the presentation as it portrayed 

the service improvements very clearly. 

 Was the transition seamless? No, there were some issues in the 

beginning of the contract with regards to the technology and its 

effects on on-time performance. However, the issue has since 

been addressed. Also, on a staff level, communication was really 

great.  

 Are you allowing a grace period for these service 

improvements? Yes, we are giving the contractor 90 days to 

address and improve on these issues.  

 

5. Joint PAPCO and ParaTAC Discussion – Notification of Service Changes 

Naomi Armenta reviewed the handout on transportation project 

delivery and facilitated a discussion regarding service change 

notifications. 

 

Questions and feedback from PAPCO and ParaTAC members: 

 A member noted the construction taking place at the MacArthur 

BART Station and the relocation of the Emery-Go-Round shuttle 

stops. Since there was no proper notification, the member 

posted an update on local transportation blogs. 

 A member noted that their active mailing list was really helpful as 

well as their update on the City’s website. 

 A member noted that with the recent change in AC Transit fare 

structure, their staff produced bus car cards, updated the 

website, sent emails, sent regular USPS mail, sent an E-news email 

blast, held public meetings, staffed outreach events, made 

presentations and supported a street team. 

 A member noted that updates to their City’s website, sending 

letters to consumers and outreach by their advisory committee 

members are methods that are very helpful. 

 A member noted that partnership with locations where 

consumers buy scrips or vouchers (i.e. for taxi scrip or voucher 

programs) and providing information of any changes or updates 

at that point is very beneficial. 

 

Page 9



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_20141027.docx  

 

6. Information Items 

 

6.1. Member Announcements 

There were no member announcements. 

 

6.2. Staff Updates 

There were no staff updates. 

 

7. Draft Agenda Items for February 23, 2015 Joint PAPCO/ParaTAC 

Meeting 

7.1. Gap Grant Cycle 6 Update 

7.2. Joint PAPCO/ParaTAC Discussion 

 

8. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m. The next Joint PAPCO/ParaTAC 

meeting is scheduled for February 23, 2015 at Alameda CTC’s offices 

located at 1111 Broadway, Suite 800, in Oakland. 

Page 10



 
 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

Memorandum 5 

 

DATE: November 18, 2014 

SUBJECT: Funding Formula for Measure B and BB Specialized 

Transportation for Seniors and People with 

Disabilities for FY15-16 

RECOMMENDATION: Make a recommendation on the funding formula 

for Measure B and BB transportation for seniors and 

people with disabilities for FY15-16 

 

Summary 

In June 2012, the Alameda CTC Commission adopted a PAPCO-

recommended funding formula for the allocation of Measure B sales 

tax revenues to cities within each of four Alameda County planning 

areas for Specialized Transportation (Paratransit) Services. This formula 

is effective for five years, until June 30, 2017. PAPCO’s 

recommendations included (1) updating the formula annually with the 

American Community Survey (ACS) income data and (2) incorporating 

disability data should it become available before 2017. PAPCO is 

requested to make a recommendation on the proposed updates to 

the Measure B funding formula for FY 2015-16, including population 

estimates, disability data, and a formula for the new 2014 

Transportation Expenditure Plan. Staff recommends: 

 For the allocation of Measure B funds within planning areas, that 

the population source data be derived from the American 

Community Survey (ACS) instead of from Census 2010; and that 

disability data from ACS be added; 

 That the funding formula for the allocation of Measure B funds 

within planning areas also be applied to Measure BB funds; and 

Page 11



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

 That the same source for population data be used for (1) the 

funding formulas for the distribution of Measure B and Measure BB 

funds within planning areas, and (2) the allocation of Measure BB 

funds to the four planning areas (population of 70 and above). 

Background 

Measure B Funding Distribution 

Per the Alameda County Transportation Commission’s 2000 

Transportation Expenditure Plan, 10.45% of Measure B funds go to 

specialized transportation for seniors and people with disabilities.  This 

10.45% is distributed as follows: 

 5.63% allocated to ADA-mandated paratransit services  

 3.39% allocated to non-mandated paratransit services 

 1.43% allocated to the Gap Grant Program 

Alameda County is divided into four planning areas. The 3.39% 

allocated to non-mandated paratransit services is distributed to the 

planning areas as follows: 

 North County = 1.24% 

 Central County = 0.88% 

 South County = 1.06% 

 East County = 0.21% 

These allocations were determined as part of the negotiations to craft 

the 2000 Transportation Expenditure Plan for Measure B sales tax 

revenues. This distribution is set and cannot be changed; funds from a 

planning area may not be transferred to another area.  

PAPCO develops a funding formula to allocate funding to the cities 

within each planning area that is adopted by the Alameda CTC 

Commission for use over a period of several years. Because the 

formula is updated annually with population and income data, the 

percentage of funding for the cities within each planning area can 

Page 12



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

change from year to year. Background and staff recommendations for 

this year’s funding formula are described below.  

Funding formula for distribution within planning areas  

According to the 2000 Transportation Expenditure Plan, 3.39% of 

revenues are “for non-mandated services, aimed at improving mobility 

for seniors and people with disabilities. These funds are provided to the 

cities in the County and to Alameda County based on a formula 

developed by PAPCO.”   

The initial funding formula was adopted in 2003. The current version 

was adopted by the Commission in 2012 to be effective for five years, 

until June 30, 2017 and includes the following factors:  

Factor Description Data Source 

Age Population estimates of seniors age 

70-79 

2010 Census 

Disability Population estimates of seniors age 

80+ multiplied by 1.5 to approximate 

the population of people with 

disabilities; as of the 2010 Census, 

accurate estimates of the population 

of people with disabilities were not 

available for all cities in the county 

2010 Census 

Income Estimates of low-income households 

earning 30% of the Area Median 

Income, currently <$20,000 per year  

2010 ACS 

  

For the current formula, PAPCO recommended that it be updated 

annually with ACS income data. PAPCO also recommended that 

disability data should be incorporated if it became available before 

2017.  

  

Page 13



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

Disability data available in 2014  

Whereas the U.S. Census collects data from a very large sample of the 

population every 10 years to estimate broad demographic trends, the 

American Community Survey (ACS) collects data from a much smaller 

sample of the population every year on a broader range of population 

characteristics, including:  income and benefits, health insurance, 

education, veteran status, disabilities, work location, and mode of 

travel to work. Each year the sample size grows and data from ACS 

becomes more reliable.  

The ACS questions related to disability cover six disability types: 

 Hearing difficulty: Deaf or having serious difficulty hearing. 

 Vision difficulty: Blind or having serious difficulty seeing, even 

when wearing glasses. 

 Cognitive difficulty:  Because of a physical, mental, or emotional 

problem, having difficulty remembering, concentrating, or 

making decisions. 

 Ambulatory difficulty: Having serious difficulty walking or climbing 

stairs. 

 Self-care difficulty: Having difficulty bathing or dressing. 

 Independent living difficulty: Because of a physical, mental, or 

emotional problem, having difficulty doing errands alone such as 

visiting a doctor’s office or shopping. 

Respondents who report anyone of these six disability types are 

considered to have a disability. 

For the first time since PAPCO has been tracking it, this year the ACS 

sample size is large enough that data about disability is available for 

every city and unincorporated area in Alameda County.   

Key decisions for Measure B funding formula  

Given the availability of new data, there are three key decisions to be 

made this year:  

Page 14



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

1. Should we add ACS’s disability data to the funding formula? 

Staff recommendation: Add disability data to the formula. Staff 

considers the ACS to be a reliable source of data for the 

population with a disability and ParaTAC members agreed that it 

should be added. PAPCO has previously recommended that this 

data should be incorporated into the funding formula if/when it 

becomes available. 

2. If disability data is added, should we remove the weighting of the 

population over 80?  

Staff recommendation: Keep the weighting of the population 

over 80 in the formula. ParaTAC members pointed out that many 

older seniors do not identify themselves as disabled, although 

they might meet the ACS definition and recommended the 

weighting for over 80 be retained.   

3. Should we replace 2010 Census population data with estimates 

from ACS?  

Staff recommendation: Use the ACS population data in the 

formula. The 2010 Census population estimate offers a larger 

sample size of data, but is only updated every 10 years; ACS 

offers a smaller sample of more recent data that’s updated every 

year. Since several years have passed since the 2010 Census, the 

ACS population data is more recent. ParaTAC members were 

agreeable to the proposed change. 

To illustrate the real financial impacts that these changes would have 

on allocations, staff reviewed several scenarios using actual revenues 

from FY 13-14 with ParaTAC members on November 18th.  In the 

majority of cases revenues changed by less that 0.5%. 

Following the review by ParaTAC members, the preferred changes of 

both the ParaTAC members and staff were to: (1) include ACS 

disability data, (2) retain the 80+ weighting, and (3) change the 

population data source to ACS. The following scenario (see Figure 1) 

summarizes the impact of incorporating these proposed changes into 

the funding formula.   

Page 15



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

Figure 1. Proposed Funding Formula Scenario 

 

Difference (%) 

NORTH COUNTY   

Alameda -0.41% 

Albany -0.10% 

Berkeley -1.08% 

Emeryville 0.20% 

Oakland (incl. Piedmont) 1.40% 

CENTRAL COUNTY   

Hayward (incl. Ashland, Cherryland, 

Castro Valley, Fairview, San Lorenzo) 
3.06% 

San Leandro -3.06% 

SOUTH COUNTY   

Fremont 0.04% 

Newark 0.12% 

Union City -0.15% 

EAST COUNTY   

Pleasanton (incl. Sunol) -1.30% 

LAVTA (incl. Livermore and Dublin) 1.30% 

 

 

  

Page 16



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

Figure 2 summarizes the primary impacts of the scenario: 

Figure 2.  Summary of Impacts on Programs 

Change Primary Impacts 

Use more recent ACS 

population data instead of 

2010 Census and adds 

disability as a factor 

≥ 0.5% increase: Oakland, Hayward, 

LAVTA 

≥ 0.5% decrease: Berkeley, San 

Leandro, Pleasanton 

 

Staff recommends this Scenario for the formula because it:   

 Uses the most recent data available for all factors 

 Adds a direct measurement of disability  

 Accounts for older seniors that might have undisclosed disabilities 

Staff also recommends the formula be approved for the same length 

of time as the Master Program Funding Agreements, with annual 

updates of ACS data. 

Measure BB Funding Distribution 

The 2014 Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP), Measure BB, was 

passed by 70% of Alameda County voters on November 4, 2014. Per 

the 2014 TEP, 10% of Measure BB funds are allocated to affordable 

transit for seniors and people with disabilities, as follows: 

 6% allocated to East Bay Paratransit Consortium  

 3% allocated to cities and local transit operators 

 1% allocated for service gaps and coordination 

Alameda County is divided into four planning areas. The 3% allocated 

to cities and local transit operators will be distributed based on the 

percentage of the population over age 70 in each of the planning 

areas: 

 North County – including the cities of Albany, Alameda, Berkeley, 

Emeryville, Oakland and Piedmont. 

Page 17



 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124.docx 
 

 Central County – including the cities of Hayward and San 

Leandro or unincorporated areas. 

 South County – including the cities of Fremont, Union City, and 

Newark, as well as Union City Transit. 

 East County – including the cities of Livermore, Dublin, Pleasanton, 

unincorporated areas, and LAVTA. 

Funds from a planning area may not be transferred to another area. 

Funds can be further allocated to individual cities within each planning 

area based of a formula refined by PAPCO.  

Staff recommendation for Measure BB funding distribution 

Staff recommends that the PAPCO developed funding formula for the 

annual allocation of Measure B funds to cities and transit operators 

within planning areas also be applied to the distribution of the annual 

allocation of this funding from Measure BB. 

Staff also recommends that for Measure BB funding, that the same 

source of population data that is used in the funding formula for 

Measure B funds be used for the allocation of Measure BB funds to the 

four planning areas (population of 70 and above).  

Next Steps 

PAPCO’s recommendation will be forwarded to the Commission for 

consideration in early 2015. 

Fiscal Impact  

There is no net fiscal impact.  

Staff Contact  

Naomi Armenta, Paratransit Coordinator 

Jacki Taylor, Program Analyst 

 

Page 18

mailto:narmenta@alamedactc.org
mailto:jtaylor@alamedactc.org


 
 

R:\AlaCTC_Meetings\Community_TACs\PAPCO\20141124\7.1_PAPCO_Calendar_of_Events_20141124.docx  

 

PAPCO Calendar of Events for  
November through February 2015  7.1 

 

Full Committee Meetings 

• Regular ParaTAC monthly meeting:  

Tuesday, November 18, 2014, 9:30 to 11:30 a.m., Alameda CTC 

• Regular PAPCO monthly meeting: 

Monday, November 24, 2014, 1 to 3:30 p.m., Alameda CTC 

• Regular ParaTAC monthly meeting:  

Tuesday, December 9, 2014, 9:30 to 11:30 a.m., Alameda CTC 

Subcommittee Meetings 

• 5310 Review Subcommittee meeting:  

Thursday, November 13, 2014, 1 to 3:30 p.m., Alameda CTC 

Friday, December 5, 2014, 1 to 3:00 p.m., Alameda CTC (tentative, 

TBD December 2) 

 

Outreach 

Date Event Name Location Time 

2/4/15 Transition 

Information 

Night 

Fremont Teen Center, 39770 

Paseo Padre Parkway, Fremont, 

CA  94538 

6:00 p.m. – 

8:00 p.m. 

PAPCO members will be notified of other events as they are scheduled. 

For more information about outreach events or to sign up to attend, 

please call Krystle Pasco at (510) 208-7467. 

Page 19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 20



 
 

 P
A

P
C

O
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
 

Th
e

 P
A

P
C

O
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
e

s 
a

ss
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
0

 M
e

a
su

re
 B

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 P

la
n

 (
TE

P
),

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 P
A

P
C

O
 B

y
la

w
s.

  
A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 s

ta
ff

 u
p

d
a

te
s 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 m

o
n

th
ly

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
A

P
C

O
 C

h
a

ir
 o

r 
V

ic
e

 C
h

a
ir
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
to

 t
h

e
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 m
o

n
th

ly
 o

n
 P

A
P

C
O

 a
c

ti
v
it
ie

s.
 

 

To
p

ic
: 
P
A

P
C

O
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 P
A

P
C

O
’s

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
s 

a
n

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
d

v
is

o
ry

 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
; 
a

c
c

o
m

p
lis

h
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 i
n

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
w

a
y

s 
in

 a
ll
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

A
ll 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 a
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e

 O
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 a

c
ti
v

it
y
 (

w
ri
te

 a
n

 

a
rt

ic
le

, 
sp

e
a

k
 a

t 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
, 
v

is
it
 a

 s
e

n
io

r 
c

e
n

te
r,

 o
r 

a
tt

e
n

d
 a

n
 

e
v

e
n

t)
 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 p

u
b

lic
iz

in
g

 t
h

e
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

TC
’s

 s
p

e
c

ia
l 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 A

c
c

e
ss

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 b
o

o
k
le

t 
a

n
d

 

A
c

c
e

ss
A

la
m

e
d

a
.o

rg
 w

e
b

si
te

 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 T

E
P

 m
a

te
ri
a

ls
  

x
 

 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
P

A
P

C
O

 a
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
a

c
a

n
c

ie
s 

 
x
 

A
ss

is
t 

in
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 A
n

n
u

a
l W

o
rk

sh
o

p
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4
 

x
 

 

A
sk

 s
ta

ff
 f

o
r 

a
ss

is
ta

n
c

e
 i
n

 d
ra

ft
in

g
 t

a
lk

in
g

 p
o

in
ts

 o
r 

a
rt

ic
le

s,
 o

r 
o

b
ta

in
in

g
 

o
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

 
x
 

 
 

 
 

7.2

Page 21



 

To
p

ic
: 

M
o

b
il
it
y

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

G
o

a
l:
 L

e
a

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 A
la

m
e

d
a

 C
o

u
n

ty
’s

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 M
o

b
il
it
y

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
ff
o

rt
s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 in

p
u

t 
o

n
 A

la
m

e
d

a
 C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 M

o
b

ili
ty

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
ff

o
rt

s 
 

x
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 M
o

b
ili

ty
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 in

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

p
a

c
k
e

t 

 
x
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 P
o

li
c

y
 O

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 p
o

li
c

y
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
v

e
r 

p
a

ss
-t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 G
a

p
 G

ra
n

t 
C

y
c

le
 5

 P
ro

g
re

ss
 R

e
p

o
rt

s 
st

a
tu

s 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

M
a

rc
h

 

 x
 

  

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

fr
o

m
 G

a
p

 C
y
c

le
 5

 r
e

c
ip

ie
n

ts
 

 
x
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 a
m

e
n

d
in

g
 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 G

u
id

e
lin

e
s 

 
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 d
is

c
u

ss
io

n
s 

o
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

rm
u

la
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l T
E
P

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
 

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 G
a

p
 G

ra
n

t 
C

y
c

le
 6

 C
a

ll 
 

 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
u

p
d

a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 H

D
TS

 a
n

d
 W

S
B

TS
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Page 22



 

To
p

ic
: 

F
id

u
c

ia
ry

 O
v

e
rs

ig
h

t 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 f
id

u
c

ia
ry

 o
v

e
rs

ig
h

t 
o

v
e

r 
p

a
ss

-t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 r
e

q
u

e
st

s 
fo

r 
G

a
p

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
o

r 

M
a

tc
h

in
g

 f
u

n
d

s 

 
x
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 5
3
1
0

 C
a

ll 
o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

  
 

x
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 a
 f

id
u

c
ia

ry
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 f

in
a

n
c

e
 s

u
b

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

 
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
v

a
lu

a
te

 p
a

ss
-t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 g
ra

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

a
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
s 

 
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

G
o

a
l:
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

a
n

d
 p

o
li
c

y
 d

is
c

u
ss

io
n

s 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 jo
in

t 
d

is
c

u
ss

io
n

 w
it
h

 P
a

ra
TA

C
 a

t 
Jo

in
t 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s 

 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 

A
p

ri
l 

 x
   

    

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

su
m

m
a

ri
e

s 
o

f 
A

D
A

-m
a

n
d

a
te

d
 p

a
ra

tr
a

n
si

t 
a

d
v

is
o

ry
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s’

 m
in

u
te

s 
a

n
d

 T
ra

n
si

t 
A

c
c

e
ss

 R
e

p
o

rt
s 

 
x
 

Page 23



To
p

ic
: 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
a

n
d

 R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 in

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
s 

(e
.g

. 
S
R

A
C

, 
W

A
A

C
, 
A

A
C

, 
C

it
y
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 e

tc
.)

 a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

 C
h

a
ir
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

s 

re
q

u
e

st
e

d
 

 
x
 

R
e

c
e

iv
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

o
n

 M
TC

 a
n

d
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l i

ss
u

e
s/

e
v

e
n

ts
 

 
x
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 o
th

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s 
fo

r 
c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

To
p

ic
: 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
S
e

rv
ic

e
 

G
o

a
l:
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 d
ri
v

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
e

 a
s 

a
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
; 

a
n

d
 f

a
c

il
it
a

te
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

so
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c

o
n

su
m

e
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

In
-P

ro
g

re
ss

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 D

ri
v

e
r 

Tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 it

e
m

s 

fo
r 

A
D

A
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
C

it
y
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
ta

xi
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
, 
e

tc
. 

 
 

 
 

 
   

Page 24



 
 

 

PAPCO Appointments and  

Vacancies 
 

7.3 

 

Appointer Member 

 Alameda County  

Supervisor Scott Haggerty, D-1  Herb Hastings 

Supervisor Richard Valle, D-2  Tom Perez 

Supervisor Wilma Chan, D-3  Sylvia Stadmire 

Supervisor Nate Miley, D-4  Sandra Johnson Simon 

Supervisor Keith Carson, D-5  Will Scott 

 City of Alameda   Harriette Saunders 

 City of Albany  Jonah Markowitz 

 City of Berkeley  Vacant 

 City of Dublin  Shawn Costello 

 City of Emeryville  Joyce Jacobson 

 City of Fremont  Sharon Powers 

 City of Hayward  Vanessa Proee 

 City of Livermore  Vacant 

 City of Newark  Vacant 

 City of Oakland  Rev. Carolyn M. Orr 

 City of Piedmont  Vacant 

 City of Pleasanton  Carmen Rivera-Hendrickson 

 City of San Leandro  Margaret Walker 

 City of Union City  Suzanne Ortt 

 AC Transit   Hale Zukas 

 BART  Michelle Rousey 

 LAVTA  Esther Waltz 

 Union City Transit  Larry Bunn 

 

Page 25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 26



9.1

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 32



Page 33

10.1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 34



11/18/2014 CIL, Inc. - Assistive Technology

http://www.cilberkeley.org/assistive-technology/ 1/3

Search:

→

Announcements

Authors
Night
Thank
You
Annual
Report
2012-
2013
Nick
Feldman
Memorial
Fund

Recent
Tweets

Happy
25th
anniversary
to
@CARDcanhelp!
CARD
is a
nonprofit
agency
that
provides
emergency
preparedness
and
disaster
response
resources.

Everyone
at
CIL
is
excited
to
welcome
Stuart
James
as
the
new
Executive
Director.
Come
to
Authors
Night
and
meet
him!

Assistive Technology (AT) Services at CIL

What is Assistive Technology?

Assistive technology, often referred to as “AT,” includes just about anything – that is, any physical

material or object – that makes it easier for a person with a disability to perform a task.

Assistive technology devices are aids which substitute for or enhance the function of some physical

or mental ability. Assistive technology can be anything homemade, commercially available, or

purchased off the shelf and then modified that is used to help an individual perform some task of

daily living.  Assistive technology encompasses a broad range of devices from “low tech” devices

(e.g., pencil grips, splints, paper stabilizers) to “high tech” devices (e.g., computers, voice

synthesizers, Braille readers).

Common examples of assistive technology include:

Mobility aids such as walkers, canes, scooters, and wheelchairs,

Visual aids such as screenreading software, magnifiers, and scanners,

Listening aids such as TDDs, close caption TVs, and hearing aids,

Household management aids such as environmental control switches and remote controls,

Communication aids such as communication boards and AAC devices (which produce

digitized speech), and

CCENTER FOR INDEPENDENT
LIVING
People wi th  d isabi l i ties creating opportun i ty

Page 35



11/18/2014 CIL, Inc. - Assistive Technology

http://www.cilberkeley.org/assistive-technology/ 2/3

http://t.co/C07zyUdwav

Only
two
days
until
our
Author's
Night!
Visit
http://t.co/O0eA00ZUy
for
more
information!
We
hope
to
see
you
there!

Follow

@CILBerkeley

Follow

@ciladvocate

Attention:
PAS
providers:

For a

QuickMatch

application,

click

here.

For a

LiveScan

fingerprinting

form,

click

here.

Follow
Us
On

Computing aids such as voice-input software, mouse alternatives, and ergonomic keyboards

CIL’s AT Specialists can:

provide you with information and referrals

help you learn what sorts of assistive technology might be useful to you

where such assistive technology can be found, often times at reduced or no cost to you

you learn to use specific types of assistive technology

speak at a meeting about about AT option.

CIL’s AT Specialists can assist employers, governmental agencies, schools, senior

centers, and other community-based organizations. 

For more information about assistive technology resources available to you, please contact:

For additional resources please Click Here

CIL

Page 36



11/18/2014 Center for Accessible Technology Main Page

http://www.cforat.org/ 1/1

Directions |Site Map

Who We Work With

Programs

The AT Coalition

The iPad Project

Definitions

Making Technology Usable by Everyone
Welcome to the Center for Accessible Technology

(CforAT)

CforAT's focus is on access to computers and technology for

people with disabilities.

We do this so children with disabilities can succeed in school,

adults with disabilities can find (and keep) jobs and all people

with disabilities can use the internet, email and benefit from

the digital revolution.

CforAT also provides business consulting services to corporations, libraries and government entities. We

provide assistance on creating accessible websites and have a test bank of users with disabilities to test

products and services.

CforAT supports use of technology to promote independent living for people with disabilities, providing

information via an online resource, and engaging in advocacy work to support policies that expand access to

technology for people with disabilities, including the many people with disabilities who are low-income.

CforAT is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization.

 

Fall Keyboarding Class

There is still time to sign up for our class starting October 13th.

We are offering our "Introduction to Keyboarding" class for kids entering grades 4 to 12. To learn more

about our upcoming classes, please visit our Keyboarding page.

Learn More About Our Services

To learn more about the services offered by the Center for Accessible Technology, click on one of the links

below:

Who We Work With.
Our Programs.
The AT Coalition (a national project that provides AT information and trainings).
The iPad Project( a lending library of iPads that can be used as speech generating devices).
The definition of Accessible Technology and Assistive Technology.
Computer Skills Trainings.

 

Top

Accessibility of our Site

Center for Accessible Technology | 3075 Adeline, Suite 220, Berkeley, CA 94703
v: (510) 841-3224 | fax: (510) 841-7956

email: info@cforat.org  | website: www.cforat.org

Main  Direct Service  Consulting  Advocacy and Policy  About

Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 38



11/18/2014 CA LifeLine Free Cell Phone Service - Budget Mobile

http://www.budgetmobile.com/California_Lifeline_Free_Phone.cfm 1/3

Home | My Account | Support | News | Espanol

Sign Up

|

Add Minutes

|

Plans

|

Equipment

|

Coverage

|

About Us

Annual Recertification

California Tariff
California Terms and Conditions
FAQ

FREE PHONE
Unlimited* FREE Minutes
& Unlimited* FREE Texts
each month
for eligible customers
from Budget Mobile. 

Start by entering your zip code:

Enter Zip Code  

California Store Locations
Bakersfield Store
333 Union Avenue 
Suite 107-B
Bakersfield, CA 93307
1-888-777-4007

El Cajon Store
1047 East Main Street 
El Cajon, CA 92021
1-888-777-4007

Fresno Store COMING SOON
5247 East Kings Canyon Road 
Suite 101
Fresno, CA 93727
1-888-777-4007
Opening Soon!

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super - Arleta
9710 Woodman Avenue 
El Super
Arleta, CA 91334
747-201-1525

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super -
Commerce

CA LifeLine Cell Phone Service
Budget Mobile LifeLine offers government assisted wireless services to low income families and individuals in
California. Qualified customers will receive a free cell phone plus Unlimited free minutes and Unlimited free
texts every month. We offer LifeLine discounts to qualified CA customers who meet certain eligibly
requirements such as government assistance or a household income that is at or below 150% of the federal
poverty level. Budget Mobile LifeLine is limited to one per household and cannot be combined with any other
LifeLine offering.

All California Budget Mobile LifeLine Eligible Customers Receive:

FREE mobile phone

Unlimited FREE minutes every month automatically

Unlimited FREE texts every month automatically

California Budget Mobile LifeLine Plan Benefits:

NO Contracts, No Cost

Nationwide Coverage

Caller ID

Call Waiting

Voicemail

If you are already a Budget Mobile LifeLine customer Click Here To Login To Your Account

Budget Mobile Government Program

Choose from the eligible programs in California

Annual Income

Bureau of Indian Affairs General Assistance

Federal Housing Assistance (Section 8)

Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Go

Page 39



11/18/2014 CA LifeLine Free Cell Phone Service - Budget Mobile

http://www.budgetmobile.com/California_Lifeline_Free_Phone.cfm 2/3

5646 East Whittier Boulevard 
El Super
Commerce, CA 90022
323-430-0344

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super - Covina
960 West Arrow Highway 
El Super
Covina, CA 91722
626-483-7387

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super -
Downtown
1100 West Slauson Avenue 
El Super
Los Angeles, CA 90044
213-604-6269

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super -
Huntington Park
7000 South Alameda Street 
El Super
Huntington Park, CA 90255
323-312-9369

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super -
Inglewood
3321 West Century Boulevard 
El Super
Inglewood, CA 90303
(310) 431-1036

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super -
Moreno Valley
24899 Alessandro Boulevard 
El Super
Moreno Valley, CA 92533
951-208-5494

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super - North
Hollywood
12727 Sherman Way 
El Super
North Hollywood, CA 91605
818-299-2364

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super - Rialto
515 South Riverside Avenue 
El Super
Rialto, CA 92376
909-301-2139

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super - San
Bernardino
263 East 9th Street 
El Super
San Bernardino, CA 92410
909-454-8961

Los Angeles Kiosk - El Super - Santa
Ana
2445 South Bristol Street 
El Super
Santa Ana, CA 92707
657-218-8826

Oakland Kiosk
3439 International Boulevard 
Oakland, CA 94601
510-318-2645

Medicaid/Medi-Cal

National School Lunch (free program only)

Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)/Cal-Fresh

Supplemental Security Income

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)/CAlworks/Stan Works/Welfare to Work/GAIN

Tribally-Administered Head Start Program (income based only)

Tribally-Administered Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Women, Infants and Children Program

NOTE: Due to FCC changes to the LifeLine Program, all new applicants will need to submit proof of
government assistance in order to complete enrollment. There are several easy methods to submit proof
eligibility; you will be able to select what method is best for you later in the signup process.

Prepaid Plans
In addition to our LifeLine Plans, Budget Mobile also offers a variety of flexible prepaid plans to fit your needs.
Whether you talk a little or talk a lot, we have a 30 day plan for everyone. You can change your plan every
month to fit your lifestyle or you can Add Minutes anytime you need them.

Budget Mobile Plan Talk Text Data (MB)

$22.40 1000 UNLIMITED -

$40.00 UNLIMITED UNLIMITED -

$50.00 UNLIMITED UNLIMITED 3000

Page 40



11/18/2014 CA LifeLine Free Cell Phone Service - Budget Mobile

http://www.budgetmobile.com/California_Lifeline_Free_Phone.cfm 3/3

Oakland Store
10329 International Boulevard 
Oakland, CA 94603
510-560-2132

Sacramento Store - Northgate
2407 Northgate Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95833
1-916-993-8924

Sacramento Store - Southgate 
4540-C Florin Road 
Sacramento, CA 95823
916-399-5803

Salinas Kiosk - El Super
640 East Boronda Road 
El Super
Salinas, CA 93906
831-540-0219

San Diego Kiosk - El Super - National
City
3007 Highland Avenue 
El Super
National City, CA 91950
619-433-2942

San Diego Store - City Heights
4153-B University Avenue 
San Diego, CA 92105
(619) 578 - 2515

Stockton Store COMING SOON
Waterloo Center 
Stockton, CA 95205
1-888-777-4007
Opening Soon!

For more information about our prepaid plans, please call or visit one of our Budget Mobile stores nearest you.

20

    Company

About Budget Mobile

Contact Us

News

Visit Us on Facebook

Privacy Policy

Terms & Conditions

Find a Store

Become an Agent

Products & Plans

Sign Up Today

Lifeline Plans

Coverage

Prepaid Plans

Add Minutes & Text

Recertification

Upload Proof

Information

My Account

Support

Resources

FAQ's

Tariffs

Application Forms

Phone Manuals

Hearing Aid Compatibility

Sitemap

Arizona

Arkansas

California

Colorado

Georgia

Hawaii

Idaho

Indiana

Iowa

Kansas

Kentucky

Louisiana

Maine

Maryland

Massachusetts

Michigan

Minnesota

Missouri

Nevada

North Dakota

Ohio

Oklahoma

Pennsylvania

Puerto Rico

Rhode Island

South Carolina

South Dakota

Texas

Utah

Washington

West Virginia

Wisconsin

Wyoming

States

Page 41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 42



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

av
el

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 R
es

ou
rc

es

Re
so

ur
ce

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Co

m
pu

te
r

Sm
ar

tp
ho

ne
Ce

llp
ho

ne
 w

ith
ou

t 
In

te
rn

et
 A

cc
es

s
No

te
s

51
1

51
1 i

s y
ou

r o
ne

-st
op

 ph
on

e a
nd

 w
eb

 
so

ur
ce

 fo
r u

p-
to-

the
-m

inu
te 

Ba
y A

re
a 

tra
ffic

, tr
an

sit
, r

ide
sh

ar
e, 

an
d b

icy
cli

ng
 

inf
or

ma
tio

n. 
It's

 F
RE

E 
an

d a
va

ila
ble

 
wh

en
ev

er
 yo

u n
ee

d i
t –

 24
 ho

ur
s a

 
da

y, 
7 d

ay
s a

 w
ee

k –
 fr

om
 an

yw
he

re
 

in 
the

 ni
ne

-co
un

ty 
Ba

y A
re

a.

51
1.o

rg
Ca

ll o
r d

ow
nlo

ad
 51

1 T
ra

ns
it A

pp
. 

De
sig

ne
d f

or
 iP

ho
ne

 4 
(a

nd
 la

ter
), 

an
d A

nd
ro

id,
 pr

ov
ide

s d
oo

r-t
o-

do
or

 tr
an

sit
 tr

ip 
pla

nn
ing

 on
 m

or
e 

tha
n 3

0 t
ra

ns
it a

ge
nc

ies
 an

d f
ind

s 
sc

he
du

led
 de

pa
rtu

re
 tim

es
 fo

r 
tra

ns
it s

top
s t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t th
e r

eg
ion

. 
W

ith
 th

e i
nte

ra
cti

ve
 m

ap
 yo

u c
an

 
loc

ate
 yo

ur
 ro

ute
 an

d v
iew

 st
op

s 
alo

ng
 th

e w
ay

, a
s w

ell
 as

 yo
ur

 
cu

rre
nt 

po
sit

ion
 fr

om
 G

PS
 w

hil
e o

n 
the

 m
ov

e. 
W

alk
ing

 di
re

cti
on

s t
o 

yo
ur

 st
op

s a
nd

 fa
re

s (
wi

th 
tra

ns
fer

s) 
ar

e a
lso

 av
ail

ab
le.

Ca
ll 5

11
W

he
n c

all
ing

 fo
r in

-p
er

so
n a

ss
ist

an
ce

, 
rid

er
s a

re
 ad

vis
ed

 to
 na

vig
ate

 to
 th

e 
pa

rtic
ula

r t
ra

ns
it a

ge
nc

y, 
ra

the
r t

ha
n 

ge
ne

ra
l 5

11
 as

sis
tan

ce
.  I

f r
ide

rs 
ha

ve
 bu

s 
sto

p I
D 

#s
, th

ey
 ca

n o
bta

in 
re

alt
im

e a
rri

va
l 

inf
o.

AC
 T

ra
ns

it
Pu

bli
c T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n A

uth
or

ity
 fo

r 
we

ste
rn

 A
lam

ed
a a

nd
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta 
Co

un
tie

s.

ww
w.

AC
Tr

an
sit

.or
g

Sp
ec

ial
ly 

for
ma

tte
d s

ch
ed

ule
 fo

r 
an

y i
nd

ivi
du

al 
bu

s l
ine

 on
 yo

ur
 

mo
bil

e d
ev

ice
 at

 
htt

p:/
/m

ob
ile

.ac
tra

ns
it.o

rg

Di
al 

51
1 a

nd
 sa

y, 
“A

C 
Tr

an
sit

,” 
to 

sp
ea

k w
ith

 a 
pe

rso
n a

bo
ut 

ro
ute

 
inf

or
ma

tio
n i

nc
lud

ing
 tim

e 
po

int
s, 

de
sti

na
tio

ns
, o

r 
trip

 pl
an

nin
g. 

Mo
nd

ay
 

thr
ou

gh
 F

rid
ay

, 7
:00

am
 

to 
7:0

0p
m;

 S
atu

rd
ay

 an
d 

Su
nd

ay
, 9

 am
 to

 5p
m.

Ho
ur

s f
or

 tr
av

el 
inf

or
ma

tio
n: 

Mo
nd

ay
 

thr
ou

gh
 F

rid
ay

, 7
:00

am
 to

 7:
00

pm
; 

Sa
tur

da
y a

nd
 S

un
da

y, 
9 a

m 
to 

5p
m.

 
Cl

os
ed

 ho
lid

ay
s e

xc
ep

t P
re

sid
en

ts 
Da

y, 
ML

K 
an

d V
ete

ra
ns

 D
ay

.

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 5

Page 43



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

av
el

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 R
es

ou
rc

es

Re
so

ur
ce

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Co

m
pu

te
r

Sm
ar

tp
ho

ne
Ce

llp
ho

ne
 w

ith
ou

t 
In

te
rn

et
 A

cc
es

s
No

te
s

BA
RT

Ba
y A

re
a R

ap
id 

Tr
an

sit
 is

 a 
ra

pid
 

tra
ns

it s
ys

tem
 se

rvi
ng

 th
e S

an
 

Fr
an

cis
co

 B
ay

 A
re

a. 
Th

e h
ea

vy
-ra

il 
pu

bli
c t

ra
ns

it a
nd

 su
bw

ay
 sy

ste
m 

co
nn

ec
ts 

Sa
n F

ra
nc

isc
o w

ith
 ci

tie
s i

n 
the

 E
as

t B
ay

 an
d s

ub
ur

bs
 in

 no
rth

er
n 

Sa
n M

ate
o C

ou
nty

.

ww
w.

BA
RT

.go
v

Of
fic

ial
 B

AR
T 

inf
or

ma
tio

n 
ev

er
yw

he
re

 yo
u g

o! 
W

e'v
e g

ot 
re

al 
tim

e d
ep

ar
tur

es
, d

ela
y a

dv
iso

rie
s, 

trip
 pl

an
s, 

sc
he

du
les

, s
tat

ion
 

inf
or

ma
tio

n a
nd

 m
or

e. 
Po

int
 yo

ur
 

mo
bil

e b
ro

ws
er

 to
 m

.ba
rt.

go
v a

nd
 

yo
u'r

e g
oo

d t
o g

o.

51
0 4

65
-2

27
8. 

Op
er

ato
rs 

ar
e a

va
ila

ble
 8:

00
 a.

m.
 to

 
9:0

0 p
.m

., s
ev

en
 da

ys
 a 

we
ek

.
Au

tom
ate

d s
ch

ed
ule

s, 
far

es
 an

d r
ea

l-ti
me

 
inf

or
ma

tio
n i

s a
va

ila
ble

 
24

/7.

BA
RT

Ma
p

BA
RT

 M
ap

 ap
pli

ca
tio

n
N/

A
iO

S
N/

A
Cl

ipp
er

 C
ar

d
Cl

ipp
er

® 
is 

an
 al

l-in
-o

ne
 tr

an
sit

 ca
rd

 
tha

t k
ee

ps
 tr

ac
k o

f a
ny

 
pa

ss
es

,di
sc

ou
nt 

tic
ke

ts,
 rid

e b
oo

ks
 

an
d c

as
h v

alu
e t

ha
t y

ou
 lo

ad
 on

to 
it, 

wh
ile

 ap
ply

ing
 al

l a
pp

lic
ab

le 
far

es
, 

dis
co

un
ts 

an
d t

ra
ns

fer
 ru

les
. C

lip
pe

r 
ca

n b
e u

se
d o

n M
un

i, B
AR

T,
 A

C 
Tr

an
sit

, V
TA

, S
am

Tr
an

s, 
Ca

ltra
in 

an
d 

Go
lde

n G
ate

 T
ra

ns
it a

nd
 F

er
ry.

ww
w.

cli
pp

er
ca

rd
.co

m
htt

ps
://m

.cl
ipp

er
ca

rd
.co

m 
to 

ad
d 

va
lue

87
7.8

78
.88

83
Th

e C
lip

pe
r c

ar
d c

an
 ho

ld 
mu

ltip
le 

pa
ss

es
, 

rid
e b

oo
ks

 or
 tic

ke
ts 

(w
hic

h a
re

 sp
ec

ific
 to

 
the

 tr
an

sit
 sy

ste
m 

be
ing

 us
ed

), 
as

 w
ell

 as
 

up
 to

 $3
00

 in
 ca

sh
 va

lue
 at

 on
e t

im
e. 

Ca
sh

 
va

lue
 on

 yo
ur

 C
lip

pe
r c

ar
d c

an
 be

 us
ed

 to
 

rid
e a

ny
 pa

rtic
ipa

tin
g t

ra
ns

it s
ys

tem
. Y

ou
 

ca
n a

dd
 va

lue
 (in

 th
e f

or
m 

of 
bo

th 
pa

ss
es

 
an

d c
as

h v
alu

e)
 to

 yo
ur

 ca
rd

 as
 yo

u g
o, 

or
 

for
 ad

de
d c

on
ve

nie
nc

e, 
yo

u c
an

 se
t u

p 
yo

ur
 ca

rd
 to

 au
tom

ati
ca

lly
 re

loa
d 

wh
en

ev
er

 yo
ur

 pa
ss

 ex
pir

es
 or

 yo
ur

 ca
sh

 
ba

lan
ce

 fa
lls

 be
low

 $1
0.

Fla
sh

lig
ht

Su
pe

r-B
rig

ht 
LE

D 
Fla

sh
lig

ht 
ins

tan
tly

 
tur

ns
 yo

ur
 de

vic
e i

nto
 a 

br
igh

t 
fla

sh
lig

ht.
 T

he
 ul

tim
ate

 lig
hti

ng
 to

ol 
tak

es
 fu

ll a
dv

an
tag

e o
f th

e L
ED

 lig
ht.

 
St

ro
be

/B
lin

kin
g M

od
e i

s a
lso

 
su

pp
or

ted
 an

d i
t's

 F
RE

E!

N/
A

Su
pe

r-B
rig

ht 
LE

D 
Fla

sh
lig

ht 
ap

p
N/

A
Ge

ne
ra

l s
afe

ty 
re

co
mm

en
da

tio
n.

Go
og

le 
Ma

ps
Ge

ne
ra

l m
ap

pin
g p

ro
gr

am
 th

at 
als

o 
off

er
s d

riv
ing

, w
alk

ing
, b

icy
cle

, a
nd

 
tra

ns
it d

ire
cti

on
s.

htt
ps

://m
ap

s.g
oo

gle
.co

m
Ap

p
N/

A

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 5

Page 44



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

av
el

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 R
es

ou
rc

es

Re
so

ur
ce

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Co

m
pu

te
r

Sm
ar

tp
ho

ne
Ce

llp
ho

ne
 w

ith
ou

t 
In

te
rn

et
 A

cc
es

s
No

te
s

iB
AR

T 
(E

mb
ar

k)
Pe

r S
FG

ate
 "T

he
 be

st 
BA

RT
 ap

p f
or

 
bo

th 
ve

ter
an

 rid
er

s a
nd

 ne
wb

ies
."

N/
A

iO
S;

 E
mb

ar
k i

BA
RT

N/
A

Re
al 

tim
e u

pd
ate

s f
or

 se
rvi

ce
 in

ter
ru

pti
on

s.

Ne
xtB

us
Tr

an
sit

 rid
er

s c
an

 ge
t n

ex
t b

us
 

inf
or

ma
tio

n w
he

ne
ve

r, 
wh

er
ev

er
, a

nd
 

ho
we

ve
r t

he
y w

an
t. N

ex
tB

us
 ar

riv
al 

inf
or

ma
tio

n i
s m

ad
e a

va
ila

ble
 th

ro
ug

h 
the

 in
ter

ne
t to

 m
ob

ile
 de

vic
es

 su
ch

 as
 

sm
ar

tph
on

es
 an

d t
ab

let
s, 

co
mp

ute
rs,

 
an

d w
ay

sid
e s

ign
s f

ou
nd

 at
 bu

s 
sh

elt
er

s a
nd

 tr
an

sit
 de

po
ts.

 Y
ou

 ca
n 

als
o t

ex
t to

 re
ce

ive
 ar

riv
al 

inf
or

ma
tio

n 
an

d s
ub

sc
rib

e t
o r

ec
eiv

e m
es

sa
ge

s 
pe

rtin
en

t to
 yo

ur
 ro

ute
.

ww
w.

ne
xtb

us
.co

m
Go

 to
 w

ww
.ne

xtb
us

.co
m 

on
 yo

ur
 

int
er

ne
t b

ro
ws

er
. N

ex
tB

us
 w

ill 
au

tom
ati

ca
lly

 de
ter

mi
ne

 yo
ur

 
loc

ati
on

 to
 fin

d y
ou

r n
ea

re
st 

sto
p. 

Ma
ke

 su
re

 to
 ta

p “
OK

” if
 yo

u 
re

ce
ive

 a 
me

ss
ag

e a
bo

ut 
us

ing
 

yo
ur

 cu
rre

nt 
loc

ati
on

.” 
Or

, y
ou

 ca
n 

tap
 “M

en
u”

 an
d “

Se
lec

t S
pe

cif
ic 

St
op

” t
o f

ind
 yo

ur
 ag

en
cy

 an
d 

ro
ute

. F
or

 qu
ick

 ac
ce

ss
 to

 
ne

xtb
us

.co
m,

 bo
ok

ma
rk 

the
 si

te 
dir

ec
tly

 to
 yo

ur
 ho

me
 sc

re
en

.

Te
xt:

 If 
yo

u k
no

w 
yo

ur
 ag

en
cy

 an
d 

sto
p n

um
be

r, 
tex

t to
 41

41
1, 

the
n 

en
ter

 yo
ur

 ag
en

cy
 an

d s
top

. (
i.e

. 
ac

tra
ns

it 5
29

99
)

Te
xt:

 If 
yo

u k
no

w 
yo

ur
 

ag
en

cy
 an

d s
top

 nu
mb

er
, 

tex
t to

 41
41

1, 
the

n e
nte

r 
yo

ur
 ag

en
cy

 an
d s

top
. 

(i.e
. a

ctr
an

sit
 52

99
9)

Ne
xtB

us
 us

es
 G

PS
 te

ch
no

log
y a

nd
 a 

pr
op

rie
tar

y a
lgo

rith
m 

tha
t in

co
rp

or
ate

s 
his

tor
ica

l tr
av

el 
da

ta 
to 

tra
ck

 ve
hic

les
 an

d 
pr

ed
ict

 ve
hic

le 
ar

riv
al 

tim
e. 

By
 ta

kin
g i

nto
 

ac
co

un
t th

e a
ctu

al 
po

sit
ion

 of
 th

e b
us

es
, 

the
ir i

nte
nd

ed
 st

op
s, 

an
d t

yp
ica

l tr
aff

ic 
pa

tte
rn

s, 
Ne

xtB
us

 ca
n e

sti
ma

te 
ve

hic
le 

ar
riv

als
 w

ith
 a 

hig
h d

eg
re

e o
f a

cc
ur

ac
y. 

Th
is 

es
tim

ate
 is

 re
fre

sh
ed

 co
ns

tan
tly

 to
 

pr
ov

ide
 rid

er
s w

ith
 up

-to
-th

e-
mi

nu
te 

inf
or

ma
tio

n.

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 5

Page 45



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

av
el

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 R
es

ou
rc

es

Re
so

ur
ce

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Co

m
pu

te
r

Sm
ar

tp
ho

ne
Ce

llp
ho

ne
 w

ith
ou

t 
In

te
rn

et
 A

cc
es

s
No

te
s

Ne
xt 

Ri
de

Ne
xt 

Ri
de

 sh
ow

s t
he

 sc
he

du
le 

for
 th

e 
ne

xt 
tra

in,
 tr

oll
ey

 or
 fe

rry
 le

av
ing

 th
e 

sta
tio

n. 
Th

e n
ea

re
st 

sta
tio

n a
nd

 
cu

rre
nt 

sc
he

du
le 

ar
e a

uto
ma

tic
all

y 
sh

ow
n, 

yo
u c

ho
os

e t
he

 de
sir

ed
 ro

ute
. 

Yo
u c

an
 tr

y i
t o

ut 
for

 fr
ee

 an
d c

an
 

alw
ay

s u
se

 th
e c

ur
re

nt 
da

y's
 sc

he
du

le 
for

 th
e c

los
es

t s
tat

ion
. F

ull
 fe

atu
re

s 
an

d s
ch

ed
ule

s c
an

 be
 pu

rch
as

ed
 

wi
thi

n t
he

 ap
p. 

Tr
an

sit
 sy

ste
ms

 
inc

lud
e: 

LA
 M

etr
o, 

Me
tro

lin
k, 

Ca
ltra

in,
 

Sa
n D

ieg
o C

oa
ste

r, 
Sp

rin
ter

, T
ro

lle
y, 

an
d o

the
rs 

co
mi

ng
 so

on
.

N/
A

iO
S

N/
A

Av
ail

ab
le 

in 
va

rio
us

 ci
tie

s

Qu
ick

MU
NI

SF
 M

un
i b

us
 &

 tr
ain

 ar
riv

als
 —

 
qu

ick
ly!

 S
ee

 al
l th

e c
los

es
t s

top
s n

ea
r 

yo
u, 

an
d a

ll t
he

 ro
ute

s t
ha

t s
er

ve
 

the
m.

 T
ap

 on
 a 

ro
ute

 to
 ge

t a
 m

ap
 

wi
th 

liv
e v

eh
icl

e l
oc

ati
on

s i
n r

ea
ltim

e, 
or

 se
t a

n a
lar

m 
to 

let
 yo

u k
no

w 
wh

en
 

yo
ur

 rid
e i

s f
ive

 m
inu

tes
 aw

ay
. A

nd
, 

ke
ep

 yo
ur

 fa
vo

rite
 st

op
s a

t y
ou

r 
fin

ge
rtip

s! 

N/
A

An
dr

oid
N/

A
No

 ad
s, 

no
 us

er
 tr

ac
kin

g, 
an

d c
om

ple
tel

y 
fre

e. 
Al

ar
ms

! T
ap

 on
 pr

ed
ict

ion
s t

o s
et 

up
 

an
 al

ar
m.

 - 
Ma

ps
! T

ap
 on

 a 
ro

ute
 ic

on
 to

 
se

e a
 m

ap
 w

ith
 liv

e v
eh

icl
e l

oc
ati

on
s. 

- 
Se

ar
ch

! E
nte

r a
 S

top
 ID

 # 
to 

ge
t a

rri
va

ls 
at 

jus
t o

ne
 pl

atf
or

m.
 Q

uic
kM

un
i s

or
ts 

ev
er

yth
ing

 ne
ar

by
 an

d a
lw

ay
s s

ho
ws

 th
e 

clo
se

st 
str

ee
t c

or
ne

rs 
an

d s
tat

ion
s f

irs
t. 

So
, a

ll a
t o

nc
e y

ou
 ca

n s
ee

 ev
er

y r
ou

te 
tha

t s
er

ve
s a

 st
op

. Y
ou

 cl
ick

 le
ss

 an
d g

et 
wh

at 
yo

u n
ee

d f
as

ter
.

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 5

Page 46



A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

av
el

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 R
es

ou
rc

es

Re
so

ur
ce

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Co

m
pu

te
r

Sm
ar

tp
ho

ne
Ce

llp
ho

ne
 w

ith
ou

t 
In

te
rn

et
 A

cc
es

s
No

te
s

W
ea

the
rB

ug
Do

wn
loa

d W
ea

the
rB

ug
 to

 ac
ce

ss
 th

e 
wo

rld
’s 

lar
ge

st 
ne

tw
or

k o
f r

ea
l-ti

me
 

we
ath

er
 an

d l
igh

tni
ng

 se
ns

or
s f

or
 th

e 
be

st 
for

ec
as

ts,
 th

e f
as

tes
t a

ler
ts 

an
d 

mo
re

. G
et 

the
 m

os
t a

cc
ur

ate
 pi

np
oin

t 
for

ec
as

ts 
for

 yo
ur

 ne
igh

bo
rh

oo
d a

nd
 

mi
llio

ns
 of

 ci
tie

s a
ro

un
d t

he
 w

or
ld!

 
Be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

the
 fa

ste
st,

 m
os

t 
ad

va
nc

ed
 ea

rly
 w

ar
nin

g s
ys

tem
!

we
ath

er
.w

ea
the

rb
ug

.co
m/

An
dr

oid
, iO

S,
 B

lac
kb

er
ry,

 
W

ind
ow

s M
ob

ile
N/

A
Ge

ne
ra

l in
for

ma
tio

n.

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 5

Page 47



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 48



 

116 NEW MONTGOMERY STREET, SUITE 500     SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94105     415-284-1544     FAX 415-284-1554 

www.nelsonnygaard.com 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

To: PAPCO/ParaTAC 

From:  Paratransit Coordination Team 

Date:  November 17, 2014 

Subject:  Alameda CTC Mobility Workshop: 2014 Outcomes Summary  

OVERVIEW 

The 11th Annual Mobility Workshop for Seniors and People with 
Disabilities was held on October 17th, 2014 at the Ed Roberts Campus 
in Berkeley, CA. Workshop sessions included:  

 State of the System and Hot Topics in Accessible Transportation 

 Transportation Access to Healthcare and Social Services 

 On-Demand Transportation Services and Accessibility 

 New 211 and Access Alameda Website Demonstration 

 Update on Measure BB 

Workshop participants heard about several thought-provoking new 
technologies that are helping seniors live independently and safely. 
Accessing healthcare services could become easier if the trend toward 
“healthcare in the home” and the decentralization of clinics 
continues. The session on new on-demand transportation services 
that use web- or mobile-based apps generated significant discussion 
and interest from audience members. While traditional taxi services 
are declining as these new services rise, the audience seemed hopeful 
that there are opportunities to work together and improve mobility 
options for all. The workshop newsletter will include a full summary 
of all the workshop sessions.  

ATTENDANCE 

One hundred and ten people attended from throughout the Bay 
Area—one of our largest workshops yet. Attendees represented a wide 
range of groups, including public agencies, non-profits, advocates, 
committee members, and the general public.  

10.3

Page 49



Alameda CTC Mobility Workshop: 2014 Outcomes 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 2 

RESOURCE FAIR PARTICIPATION 

We had the largest resource fair so far with over twenty participants: 

1. AC Transit 

2. Alameda County Area Agency on Aging 

3. Alameda County Social Services  

4. Alameda CTC/PAPCO 

5. Alta Bates Medical Group 

6. Bay Area Outreach and Recreation Program (BORP) 

7. Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) 

8. Center for Elders' Independence (CEI) 

9. Center for Independent Living (CIL) 

10. City Car Share 

11. Clipper Card (BART) 

12. Collaborating Agencies Responding to Disasters (CARD) 

13. Comfort Keepers of the East Bay 

14. Community Resources for Independent Living (CRIL) 

15. East Bay Paratransit 

16. Eden I&R 

17. Family Caregiver Alliance 

18. Legal Assistance For Seniors/HICAP 

19. Social Security Administration 

20. Through the Looking Glass (TLG) 

21. United Seniors of Oakland and Alameda County (USOAC) 

SURVEY 

Immediately after the workshop, attendees were sent an online survey 
to allow participants to evaluate the effectiveness and utility of the 
program. Responses were due by October 31, 2014.  

The survey received 43 responses, meaning 39% of attendees 
answered the survey. This is the highest number of responses we have 

Page 50



Alameda CTC Mobility Workshop: 2014 Outcomes 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 3 

received on the workshop survey in the last 3 years. And, over 82% of 
respondents rated the workshop “highly valuable.” 

About 47% of respondents represented organizations from North 
Alameda County, which includes Oakland, Berkeley, Emeryville, 
Alameda, and Albany. Most respondents heard about the workshop 
through emails from the Alameda CTC (43%), but word of mouth 
from colleagues and PAPCO were also instrumental in spreading the 
word. 

Over the course of the day, there was a slight decline in attendance 
according to responses, however almost every session received very 
high ratings from respondents. On a scale of one to three, with one 
meaning “not informative” and 3 meaning “highly informative,” the 
average ratings were each higher than 2.6. With our largest resource 
fair yet, there was little variation in how valuable respondents found 
each of the resource fair organizations. 

Session Average Rating 

State of the System & Hot Topics 2.8 

Access to Healthcare 2.8 

Lunchtime Resource Fair 2.6 

TNCs and Accessibility 2.8 

New 211 and Access Alameda Website Launch 2.8 

Measure BB 2.7 

The comments received on each session reflected these high ratings. 
Many respondents especially appreciated the information about new 
technologies and the time for discussion around Transportation 
Network Companies (e.g. Lyft, Lift Hero) and accessibility. A few 
responses that stand out and offer value for next year’s workshop 
include: 

Morning Session 

 “The Aging 2.0 presentation was very fascinating and I hope to 
receive updates on it!” 

 “I thought all the presenters did a great job, there was time for 
questions and a feedback.” 

Page 51



Alameda CTC Mobility Workshop: 2014 Outcomes 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 4 

 “I would have liked to see information on walking and cycling 
projects, specifically the program that Santa Clara County's 
"Outreach" organization has implemented to help seniors to 
access three-wheeled "grocery getter" cycles.” 

 “Wished that the Healthcare & Social Services Presentation got 
more at the nexus between ACA, Medi-cal reimbursement for 
NEMT, and transportation benefits in health care plans.” 

Afternoon Session 

 “I thought the lively On-Demand Transportation Services and 
Accessibility was good to have after lunch.  Sometimes 
conferences drag after a full meal - that certainly was not the 
case with this workshop. This was my first Mobility Workshop, I 
was very impressed with how well organized it was!” 

 “I was especially delighted at the presence of Lift Hero and Lyft, 
great to see PAPCO keeping things like this on their radar.  Ms. 
Toran's presentation was also inspiring.” 

 “Would have liked to see more discussion/brainstorming of 
how new great resources (211 and Access Alameda) may be tied 
to larger efforts around mobility management in Alameda 
County.” 

 “Information on the mobile device apps and systems, and 
comparison with traditional taxi was valuable. I would like to 
see a group discount plan for seniors and others with low 
income to assist with the high monthly fees for a mobile device 
data plan. Even if 60% of the special needs population 
uses/affords a data plan, that still leaves 40% who can't get the 
information they need: equity is important in this transition 
period.” 

Respondents liked the overall length of the workshop and found the 
lunch hour to be plenty of time for eating and visiting tables. There 
was only one comment regarding a preference for the workshop not 
to be on a Friday. Perhaps due to the extended questions and answer 
periods after each panel discussion, many respondents requested 
more time for brainstorming, networking, one-on-one or small group 
discussions, and break-out sessions. There was a desire to collaborate 
and develop a direction forward, and several requests to broaden the 
invite to the general public.  

Page 52



Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress Reports Update 
 

In October, PAPCO reviewed Gap Grant Cycle 5 Progress Reports 

and requested staff to follow-up and provide clarification for the 

following three projects: 

 Center for Independent Living, Inc. – Mobility Matters Project 

 Senior Helpline Services - Rides for Seniors 

 City of Oakland - Taxi-Up & Go Project 

 

Center for Independent Living, Inc. – Mobility Matters Project 

Staff update: The progress report has been revised to include USOAC 

numbers to the number of seniors to receive travel training in FY 

13/14. See revised numbers for Performance Measure 1 in the below 

table: 

 

No.  Performance Measure Target  Progress  

to date  

Progress  

this period  

1  Ala. County seniors to receive 

travel training in FY 13/14 

Target: 168  

35  

Correction: 53 

6  

Correction: 18 

2  Ala. County adults with 

disabilities to receive travel 

training (Note: this target is in 

addition to the 240 seniors to 

receive travel training) in FY 

13/14. 

Target: 246  

99  50  

3  Ala. County youths with 

disabilities to receive travel 

training in FY 13/14 

Target: 17  

30  17  

10.4

Page 53



No.  Performance Measure Target  Progress  

to date  

Progress  

this period  

4  Ala. County adults with 

disabilities to receive training on 

how to use mobility device 

(e.g., cane, scooter, walker, 

wheelchair) in FY 13/14 

Target: 35  

34  21  

5  Alameda County adults with 

disabilities to receive travel 

training on how to use a GPS 

device in FY 13/14 

Target: 10  

6  0  

6  Trainees that reported being 

satisfied or very satisfied with 

the training that they received 

in FY 13/14 

Target: 70%  

70%  86.58%  

7  Trainees that reported using 

fixed route transit successfully 

and independently since 

receiving travel training in FY 

13/14 

Target: 65%  

Still assessing  Still assessing  

 

 

Senior Helpline Services - Rides for Seniors 

Staff update: The progress report has been revised to reflect 

corrections to Performance Measure 3, the average number of rides 

to clients in FY 13/14.  

 

No.  Performance Measure Target  Progress  

to date  

Progress 

this period  

1  Recruited, screened and trained 

volunteers in FY13/14 

Target: 40  

47  9  

Page 54



No.  Performance Measure Target  Progress  

to date  

Progress 

this period  

2  Enrolled clients in Rides for Seniors 

Program in FY 13/14 

Target: 75  

61  30  

3  Average rides to clients in FY 13/14 

Target: 150-200/mo  

Monthly high 

of 82 

Average: 47  

Monthly high 

of 82 

Average: 57 

 

 

City of Oakland - Taxi-Up & Go Project 

Staff update: City of Oakland staff confirmed that the target 

numbers reported to PAPCO are accurate and that the project is 

performing at 50% of the target. In response, Oakland is going to try 

to increase monthly one-way trips to meet their target by attempting 

to shift some financial resources to address the fact that the per trip 

cost is approximately $20 instead of the projected $13. 

 

No.  Performance Measure Target  Progress to 

date  

Progress this 

period  

1  Number of one-way taxi-

escorted trips  

Target: 3600  

1,884  900  

2  Number  of 

Volunteers/Caregivers trained  

Target: 100  

128  60 

3  Number of clients transported  

Target: 500  

548  300  

4  Number of case managed 

clients  

Target: 100  

124  60  

 

Page 55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 56


	PAPCO_Meeting_Notice_20141124
	PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_20141124
	PAPCO_Meeting_Agenda_Packet_pages_20141124
	3.1_PAPCO_Meeting_Minutes_20141027
	3.2_Joint_PAPCO_ParaTAC_Meeting_Minutes_20141027
	5_Funding_Formula_Memo_20141124
	7.1_PAPCO_Calendar_of_Events_20141124
	7.2_FY14-15_PAPCO_Work_Plan_20141124
	7.3_PAPCO_Appointments_20141124
	9.1_EBP_SRAC_Meeting_Minutes_20140902
	10.1_MM_Assistive_Technology_Resources_20141124
	mm1_Deaf & Disabled Telecommunications Program
	mm2_CIL AT
	mm3_Center for Accessible Technology Main Page
	mm4_CA LifeLine Free Cell Phone Service - Budget Mobile
	mm5_Travel_Training_Technology_Resource_20131221

	10.3_Mobility_Workshop_Memo_with_Survey_20141124
	10.4_Gap_Grant_Cycle_5_Progress_Reports_Update_20141124




